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DECISION

PAHIMNA, J.

Accused EUGENIO L. FAMOR, NICASIO M. PENA, and
CAMACHO L. CHIONG, stand charged with violation of Section 3{e) of
Republic Act No. 3019 (R.A. No. 3019), otherwise known as the Anti-
Graft and Corrupt Practices Act, under Information dated 6 June 2006,
the accusatory portion of which reads:

Thai during the period of October 2001 or pror or
subsequent thereto in the Frovince of Zamboanga-Sibugay,
Philippines and within the jurisdichion of this Honorable Court, the
above-named accused public officers, EUGENIO L. FAMOR, a
high-ranking public official, being the Vice-Governor, NICASIO
PENA, Secretary of the Sangguniang Panlalawigan, and
CAMACHD L .CHIDHNG, Private Secretary, all of the Province of
Zamboanga-Sibugay, while in the performance of their official
functions and committing the offense in relation to office, conspiring
and confederating with each other, with evident bad faith and
manifest partiahty, did then and there williully, unlawfully and
crirninally i\sue a pemanent appointment fo CAMACHO L,
CHIONG as Board Secretary IV without passing through the
Personnel Selection Board, the Provincial Human Resource
Management Office, and the Civil Service Commission as required
by law, thus, granting CAMACHO L. CHIONG unwarranted benefits !
in the tolal amount of ONE HUNDRED SIXTY ONE THDLIEANJ?J.;*"
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EIVE HUNDRED SIXTY THREE PESOS and 30/1100 (P161,
563.30) representing the seven (7) months salaries and allowances
of accused CAMACHO L. CHIONG as Board Secretary IV, to the
damage and prejudice of the Provincial Govemment of
Zamboanga-Sibugay In the aforestated amount.

CONTRARY TO LAW,

Upon arraignment, Chiong, Pefia, and Famor, respectively
pleaded not guilty on 17 August 2011, 8 November 2012, and 8 January
2014, Thereafter, preliminary conference, and then, pre-trial was
conducted. On 17 February 2014, the Court issued the Pre-Trial Order,
with the following stipulations: (1) During the period October 2001 to
May 2002, there were only two (2) filled-up positions in the Office of the
Secretary to the Sangguniang Panfalawigan, those occupied by Pena
and Chiong,; (2) It is the duty of the Human Rescurce Management
Officer to determine whether an applicant is qualified for the position
applied for and to refer the application to the Provincial Selection Board;
(3) The identities of all the accused; and, (4) The fact that they are all
public officers at the time of the alleged commission of the crime.

Trial then ensued. The testimonies of prosecution witnesses
Felicidad C. Tesoro and Ernesto T. Gonzaga were dispensed with
considering that defense stipulated on the existence and authenticity of
the Civil Service Commission (CSC) Certification (Exhibit A),
Qualification Standard indicating the minimum qualification for the
position of Board Secretary IV (Exhibit A-1), and Checklist reflecting the
mandatory requirements for first salary (Exhibit A4-2); and on the fact that
Chiong was appointed as Board Secretary [V, and that he received
salaries for the months of October, November, December 2001, and
January, February, March and April 2002."

The prosecution also presented the following whose testimonies
may be summed as follows:

1. NELSIE PATRIARCA LAZO

Witness is the Assistant Provincial Human Resource Management
Officer of the Provincial Government of Zamboanga, Sibugay. Before her
prometion as such, she was appointed as Human Resource
Management Officer IV of the Provincial Government of Zamboanga,
Sibugay on 1 August 2001.°

She narrated that the corporate existence of the Provincial
Government of Zamboanga, Sibugay commenced on 1 July 2001, Most —

'T5M, 13 May 2014, pp. 8-9, 13-14

T8N, 23 July 2014, p.5
“‘I( !
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of its employees, who came from the Provincial Gaovernment of
Zamhboanga del Sur, were, likewise appointed on 1 August 2001. For her
transfer appointment, she was required to submit an approved request to
transfer, clearance as to property and money accountability and
certification of leave credits.”

According to Lazo, during that time, because their office was new,
4 was the Provincial Human Resource Management Office (PHRMO)
who prepared the appointment papers of the executive offices - the
Office of the Provincial Governor, Provincial Budget Office, Office of the
Provincial Accountant, Provincial Human Resource Management Office
and the Provincial General Service Office. Hence, in her case, she

prepared her own appointment paper. Thereafter, it was approved by
Gavernor George T. Hofer.®

On the other hand, the Office of the Vice-Governor, Office of the
Legislative, and Office of the Provincial Board Secretary (OFES)
prepared their respective appointment papers. After the appointing
authority signs the same, it had to be submitted together with the
requirements to the PHRMO for the latter to review and certify (as to
completeness of requirements) at the back of the appointmeant paper
Thereafter, the same is transmitted to the CSC *

As to accused Chiong, it was allegedly the OPBS who prepared
his appointment paper. However, it was not submitted to the PHRMO for
review. She said that she learned of Chiong's appeintment in January of
2002 when the daughter of Chiong came over to PHRMO and asked for
his father's service record. Mot finding Chiong's 201 File, Lazo asked
from the daughter whether Chiong was already appoinied. She said yes,
adding that the appointment paper of her father was already submitted
to the CSC. The following day, Chiong's daughter gave her the front
page copy of Chiong's appointment paper ?

But upon verification from the CSC, they found out that the
appointment paper of Chiong was not submitted to the CSC. Upon such
discovery, Ester Yukoya, the PHRMO Officer, informed the Vice-
Governor about the matter. Thereafter, Chiong was appointed on 6 May
2002 as Private Secretary |l of Vice-Governor Famor. This time, It was
the PHEMO who prepared his appointment paper. However, despite
the supporting documents accompanying Chiong's appointment paper,”
PHRMO Officer Yukoya did not sign at the back of his a;:}pr:mintm/eql/

TSN, 23 July 2014, pp. 5-6,

' TSN, 23 July 2014, pp, B:8.
TSN, 23 July 2014, pp. 8-10.
5 TSN, 23 July 2014, pp. 11-14,

" Exhibits N and sub-markings. l
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paper because Chiong lacked the clearance as to property and money
accountabilities from his farmer office- the local government unit of
Titay "

Meanwhile, on the guery as to who prepared the voucher for the
first and subsequent salaries of new employees, Lazo said that it was
the office concerned which prepared the same. In the case of Chiong,
<he said that it was the OPBS which prepared his voucher and payroll
She added that all the supporting documents for the payment of fist
salary‘did not pass through the PHRMO but were submitted only to the
Budget Office and the Provincial Accountant's Office.”

On cross-examination, Lazo said that Chiong's appointment paper
was given to her office. On the guery as to who prepared the Personnel
Schedule, she replied that the Provincial Budget Officer prepared the
same in October 2001 She also affirmed that Chiong rendered service
at the OPBS. which at that time had only two (2) employees: accused
Pefia as Provincial Secretary and Chiong as Board Secretary IV."

On re-direct examination, Lazo clarified that the PHRMO actually
received a copy of Chiong's appointment paper dated 1 October 2001
sometime in January of 2002, but the same was only a photocopy; they
never saw its original copy."’

2. ESTER R. YUKOYA

Witness is the Provincial Human Resource Management Officer
(PHRMO Officer) of the Province of Zamboanga, Sibugay having been

prnintzed as such on 1 August 2001 by Provincial Governor George T,
Hofer.' s

According to Yukoya, accused Pefia was appointed as Provincial
Secretary of Zamboanga, Sibugay on 2 July 2001, on a contractual
basis considering that he did not have the civil service eligibility. She
learned of Pena's appointment sometime in April 2002 when her office
was provided with a copy of his disapproved appeintment. It was

auegegly the OPBS which submitted Pefa's appointment paper to the
CSC:™"

She further claimed that she learned of the appointment of Chiong
sometime in 2002 when the Assistant Provincial Human Reanurcj}f’

— - _.\,-P‘I' [}
ErsN, 23 July 2014, pp. 16-18 "ol
9 TSN, 23 July 2014, pp. 15, 18-20,
TSN, 23 July 2014, pp. 22-23, 27
't TSN, 23 July 2014, p.28

12 TSN, 24 July, 2014, p. 10

3 TSN, 24 July 2014, pp. 10-12.
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Management Officer, MNelsie Lazo informed her that the daughter of
Camacho requested for a service record of his father from their office.
Yukoya said that they did not issue the service record because Chiong
did not have a File 201 in their office. Thus, they requested for a copy of
Chiong's appointment. In turn, Chiong's daughter provided them with a
photocopy of the front page of Chiong's appointment paper. The
daughter also said that his father's appointment paper was submitted to
the CSC Region |X. But upon verification from the CSC, they found out
that none was submitted to it."

Thereafter, Yukoya informed Vice-Governor Famor about the
matter, Famor allegedly angrily replied, "hindi ko ibibigay kay Camacho
ang mataas na posisyon na iyan dahil hindi ko sya tao, tao lang sya ni
Pepot." Pepot is allegedly the nickname of accused Pefia.™

However, after the incident, the PHRMO was instructed by Vice-
Governor Famor to prepare another appointment paper to Chiong, this
time, as co-terminus Private Secretary of Vice-Governor Famor. The
appointment paper was dated 6 May 2002 and attested by the C5C on 2
July 2002. Yukoya said that she did not sign the second page of the
appointment paper because Chiong has not yet submitted his clearance
from maney and property accountability from his previous employer- the
Municipal Government of Titay, Zamboanga, Sibugay. It was aonly in
June 2002, when he was already Private Secretary, when Chiong
allegedly actually submitted such clearance. '

According to her, the Personnel Schedule for 2002, which included
the name of Chiong as Board Secretary IV, was prepared by the Budget
Office sometime in October 2001. It was signed by her, the Provincial
Governor, and the Provincial Budget Officer. She remembered that it
was brought to her house in the evening for her signature. She did not
want to sign it at first because her office has not yet reviewed the same.
However, the staff of the Budget Office appealed to her saying that it
had to be submitted to the Sangguniang Panlalawigan for legislation the
following day, Yukoya also saw that her co-signatories had already

signed it. Thus, she siq_l:ned each page while the staff of the Budget
Office flipped the pages. ™

On cross-examination, Yukoya stated that she prepared her
appointment paper and submitted it to the Governor for approval, She
added that at that time, the Provincial Selection Board was not yet
constituted. ™ She also apined that the appointment of Chiong was not -

TSN, 24 July 2014, pp. 18-22.

15 78N, 24 July 2014, pp. 22-23,

BTSN, 24 July 2014, pp. 23-28

'T TSN, 24 July 2014, pp, 15-18.

TSN, 24 July 2014, pp. 30, 33. \m
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proper not because it did not pass Personnel Selection Board but

because it was not submitted to the CSC where all appointments should
be processed. '’

3. ROSANNA T. PALALON

Rosanna T. Palalon is the Provincial Budget Officer of Zamboanga
Sibugay, having been appointed as such on 16 October 2008. She was
formerly with the Municipal Government of Ipil, Zamboanga Sibugay, as
Budget Officer Il. Then, on 16 September 2001, she transferred to the
Provincial Government of Zamboanga Sibugay as Budget Officer 1] after
being interviewed by the Provincial Human Resource Managsment
Officer and Provincial Budget Officer =H

For her transfer, she submitted to the then Provincial Budget
Officer, the late Stella Torres, her autherity to transfer, clearance and
other credentials such as her Transcript of Records, Certificate of
Eligibility, Certificate of Earned Leave Credits and training certificates,
Thereafter, her papers were forwarded to the PHRMO. Then, she
received her appointment paper already signed by Governor George T.
Hofer, for which she was asked to sign on the side of the document
Afterwhich, it was returned to the PHRMO for transmittal to the CSC
Before March of 2002, she received her appointment paper, already
attested and approved by the CSC *'

Anent the payrolls and disbursement vouchers, Palalon disclosed
that since the beginning until 2013, they were prepared by the office
concerned because it was only in 2014 when they centralized their
payroll preparation. Meanwhile, it was the Provincial Budget Office
which reviewed the Personnel Schedule for 2002 to determine if all the
positions listed therein had appropriations.*

On cross-examination, anent the Personnel Schedule for 2002, as
a matter of procedure, it was allegedly the PHRMO Officer who first
signs the same, followed by the Budget Officer, and finally by the
Governor. On re-direct examination, she clarified that she did not know
who actually signed first in the Personnel Schedule for 2002 %

After presentation of its evidence, the prosecution offered the

following documentary exhibits which were all admitted in the Court's
Resolution of 27 February 2015, to V

Y TEN, 24 July 2014, pp.30, 33, 37
A TEN, 1 Oclaber 2014, pp. 8-9.
“ TSN, 1 October 2014, pp. 7-10,
2Top. 1 October 2014, pp. 11-12.
“* TSN, 1 October 2014, pp. 18-1
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Ej‘;'maﬁ'ém;" | DESCRIPTION
----- sp -Dngmal Eemﬁcaunn of CSC Director Azucena Pr.erez—
. Esleta regarding qualification standards for the pDEITIOH
i of Board Secretary IV, Salary Grade 22 in a Icn:ai
gnuemmeni urit
------- ; *.ﬂ,1 . Qualification Standards for the position Board Secretary |
LY, Salary Grade 22 !
ng" List of Suppurting F'aperﬁ fur Ilrst salary E
) = i : Certified true copy of Appointment issued to Eamat:hn
: Chiong, dated Octaber 1, 2001 5
“B-1"  : Certified true copy of Camacho Chiong's reque.s.t to ;
- transfer dated October 1, 2007 ]
“g-2” | Certified true copy of 1% Indorsement dated October 1,
c 2001 from Mayor Gil Dillera of Titay, Eamb::nanga
f Stbugay )
s Original copy -nf CEF‘[IfIG-EI[IDI‘I datad Elr.:iubr-:rr 3 EEICI.E
: issued by accused Nicasio M. Pefia, Provincial |
; - Secretary of Zamboanga Elhugay =
upy” | Certified true copy of DlEtILJfEE!'mE'”t "-'ﬂUEhEF In thE “Et
; 5 amnunt u::f F' IT T35.57 ﬁ:ur claimant Camacho Chiong
p4= HEques.1 for Dhl@atlnn and Allotrment (ROA) by ““355"3'
: : M. Pena for Camacho E‘-hlnng 5 f|rst salarﬁ;
! HE" » Cerlified rue copy of Dusbu;semem ‘-.I"ﬂucher hlﬂ ’ID‘I- :
1 0111-2018 in the net amount of P8,898.78 for claimant |
ﬁamachﬂ- Ghlnng 5 salar:.r ;
“E-1" Can‘lfled true copy of Dallj,-' Tlme F-'.-amrd (DTR) o I
: Gamﬂchu Ehi:}ng h:lr Nc:'.rernb-‘dr 1-15, 2001,
."E-E'I GEF[IfEd true copy of ROA for Salary of Can‘nanhn
: Chu:-ng rr;a-r !he pennd Nmemher 1- 30 EEIEH
“E-3" | Carbon copy of the check in thua narme u[ Camachn
Chiong. :
HE™ Certified true r;npy :::! F'aymll f::lr the pariod Nnvembe;
1E 3{] EIEIEI'I
“EA" Eertuﬁed true any ui DEI.I|':,|' T|me Hecurd fDTH} fl
Camacho Chiong for November 16-30. 2001, ’
£ L Certified true copy of Payroll far the period December 1-:
3‘1 E!}m |
“E=1" Cm [|f E-:J lrue copy cuf Daﬂy TIrlI{:.‘ Hﬁcnn:l {DTE] of
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Tl TR "

T L Certified trua copy of 13”‘ Month F'E“.-’FD“ i

.....................

:Eerhﬁed true copy of Danly Tlrne Record {DTH]- c:-f
: Carmacha Chiong Eﬂr .,Ianuaw 16-31, 2002

l:ertlﬁa:! true copy of F‘aw,-mll for the penod Januaw 1

'- 1-5 2002

5 : C-El'“ﬁl?d true copy of F"EIW'DH [Gl the pernod -Januarg,,r 15_
: 31, 2002 _

”:..Cartrfaed true copy nf I:]alh_,.I TI.I'HE Record {D[H}

; Nu:asm M F‘ena I:::r Januar',r 1E'i 31, 2002

E.Gerhheu:! lrue copy m‘ Payroll for the period Fehrudry '1- -
. 15, 2002 !

i Cemﬂed true copy :::F Payroll for the period February 16-

: 28, 2002

| Certified true copy of Daily Time REunrd {DTH} r:-f
5 Nicasio b, Pefia for the period February 16-28, 2002

:[‘-erhﬂed true copy of Daily Time Record (DTR) of |
! Camacho Chiong for the period February 16-28, EEI".}E

o e i e T L e L e R e i L e 5 A
__________ e mmmemam e e e e - i

|.|L11

:LM'II

3 ..‘;I.IH.‘._.T“

.|.H|l

i H‘1 L1 ]

| Certified true copy of Payroll for the period March 1- 15
2002

; C.ertlﬁed true copy of Payrall for the p&rmd I'-.-'Iarr.h 15 EE
E EEI'EIE

Eerllfled trl..le copy -:-I‘ F'a'_l,u'r-.'_:nll for the period April 1 15

1 2002

; Eertlfled true copy of Payrall for the period P-.prll '1E ED

: E[]EIE

' Certified true copy nf Mammandum dat&d .June 1?

Certlﬁgu true capy n::ll' Mid- "r'ear El-nnus Pa'g,.rmll E'DEIE

2002 for Mr. Venancic C. Fermer, Jr, F'I'I:I-'quI'II::IEI'

| Accountant of Zamboanga Sibugay, issued by Ester R, |

"mkuyd F'HHMEI

- Certifi e.:i lme copy of Iner-Department r-."lemr:: Fa:D []Ei- .

- 2002-001 dated June 15, 2002, issued by Venancio C. .

- Ferrer, Jr., Provincial Accountant, to Ms. Ester R.:

- Yukoya, FHHMD Eambaanga Eibugay

Certified true copy of Appointment as Private Se-:*retary
1 [Co-terminous) issued to Camacho Chiong bn.f
EEJ:LJEEEI "ul'me Gn::r'-.remc:nr Famc:ur an l'u"la':.r &, EL'I'DE

1
'|

':Emf'ﬁ'j true copy of PFrsnnal Data Sheet {F‘DS] of

it 4

............
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“N-1-a" Page 2 Personal Data Sheet (PD3) of Camachu
§ E‘;hmng {unrnarlr.ed}

1o WA ":Cerhﬁ d true copy Df EE C“"iE- Form 1 = DJI.IEE- Emd
’ : Heapnnsmnmes

.................

.................................................................................

“N-3" | Certified true copy n::E Certification issued by Eugenio L. :
: Famor on October 1, 2001 cerifying that the .
' appointment of Chiong is in accordance with the
. limitations of Administrative Order 265 and Sec. 325 n::E
i R.A, 0.

*N-4™ EDnglnaI copy c:ni "F'anunur‘npa sa Hatungkulan of |
. Camacho Ehlﬂhg -

“MN-5" Certifi ed copy of Cerification of .ﬂ.ssumphmn of Duty as
: E::-ard Secreiary I ::uf Edmachu I:hu:mg

st FFrnﬂt:an::m frﬂm acoused Famor ;
! "H 1"" F‘-.nu:nther Cerllflcaiu:m fml’ﬂ ELEEUE'Ed rﬂl’ﬂﬂf
: N8 | Certification from Estela Z Ti:ll'!'ElE Provincial E-Udﬂ'ﬂl

: Officer, Zamboanga Sibugay,

“N-g" Cerified true copy of Disbursement Voucher dated Ma',,n'
5 . 30, 2002 for first salary of Camacho Chiong from May B, !
i : 2002 .

“N-10" Lerhhed true copy c:.E Allutment and Dhllgatmn Slip fur

lsa{ar',-' of Camacho Chiong for the period May 6-31,
EﬂﬂE

The defense then presented accused Famor and Chiong, whose
testimonies are summed in this wise:

1. EUGENIO L. FAMOR

Accused Eugenio L. Famor recalled that in the year 2001, he was
among the first elective officials- the Vice-Governor of the newly-created
Province of Zamboanga, Sibugay. Back then, they did not have yet a
capitel building. Hus office was |ocated at the municipal buillding of the
Municipality of Ipil **

With respect to the hiring of employees in the Province of
Zamboanga, Sibugay, it was allegedly the Vice Governor who signs the
appointment papers of the employees of the Sanggunian Thereafter, =

% TSN, 15 June 2016, pp. 8-9 l e
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the appointment papers are submitted to the PHRMO for the latter to
determine whether the appointees are qualified for the positions or have

; 25
met all ather requirements.

He narrated that being a new province, with no personnel at all to
start with, applicants flocked to his office, from morning to evening
applying for various positions. He asked them to accomplish their
Personnel Data Sheet (PDS) and other needed documents. He said
that he first signs the appointment papers, then, asks them to submit the
same ta the PHRMO for the latter to evaluate their applications. For him,
his signature was not an agpﬂintment but only meant an endorsement
far the PHEMO to process.

LY

Famor allegedly only came to know Chiong when the latter came
to his office and submitted his application. When Chiong went to his
office, he “readily’ accepted his application because at that ime, they
were allegedly really in need of personnel. Thus, he signed his
appointment paper then asked him to submit it to the PHRMO for
validation that is, for determination whether he was qualified and met
the requirements. However, he did not know whether Chiong brought
the appointment paper to the PHRMO. He thought that there was no
problem when he saw Chiong report for work the following day; also,
considering that Chiong's name was Included in the Personnel
Schedule? which he said was prepared by PHRMO Officer Yukoya
According to Famor, the Personnel Schedule was the basis for
allocation of budget for salaries; thus, if one's name is not included in it;
that means that his appeointment was not processed and not approved,
and he cannot claim his salaries.™

Famor added that when Chiong applied as Board Secretary IV, he
did not know the minimum qualification for the position of Board
Secretary V. However, he did not receive any notice or memorandum
fram the PHRMO that the appointment of Chiong was defective.™

He likewise identified a letter dated 25 March 2009 written by
Provincial Board Member, Olimpio R. Manalac, to the CSC asking for
exemption from CSC Memorandum Circular 40 considering that
appointed personnel, who were not screened by the Pravincial Selection
Board and disapproved by the CSC, could not draw their salaries. He
said that the province was not able to organize a Personnel Selection
Board, Neither did he know when the Personnel Selection Board was
created; he learned of it only when Sangguniang Secretary Pena wrote _—

A =
25 TSN, 156 June 2016, p. 11 ﬁﬁ"?-”
X TSN, 15 June 2016, pp. 23-24

T Exhibit 2

TSN, 15 Juna 2016, pp. 11-13.

TSN, 16 June 2016, pp: 4-5 1 \N\
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a letter of inguiry to PHRMO Officer Yukoya and the latter replied
through letter dated 25 March 2009 that the Personnel Selection Board
was first created in year 2007

Famor likewise presented a certified true copy of the Decision
dated 12 August 2012 of the First Division of this Court acquitting him,
Pepa and Chiong of the charge of Estafa through Falsification of Public
Documents.”’

On cross-examination, when asked whether he interviewed
Chiong, Famor replied that he "just asked [a] few guestions," “[s|uch as
taga saan kayo? From where are you? Are you willing to work? That's
all, then | told him, you bring this application with my signature to the
Office of the Human Resource, HRMO.™ However, he never knew that
Chiong's appointment paper did not reach the PHRMO and the CSC. He
also disclosed that when Chiong went to him and submitted his
application, there was already a prepared appointment paper, and this
appointment paper was just signed by him.™

He also confirmed that in the OPBS, there were only two (2)
personnel- Chiong and Pefa. He appointed the latter as Provincial
Secretary on a permanent status because the position was vacant and
mrlfiden'ng that the province was newly-created with no personnel at
all.

2. CAMACHO L. CHIONG

Chiong used to occupy the position of Draftsman |1l at the Office of
the Municipal Engineer, Titay, Zamboanga, Sibugay. When the Province
of Zamboanga Sibugay, was created, he went to the Office of the
Provincial Vice-Governor to apply for the position of Board Secretary V.
He said he applied considering the bigger Eaiarg.' and since Titay was
about twenty (20) kilometers from his residence. !

He claimed that he did not personally know Vice-Governor Famor,
He only met him when he went to the latter on July 1 or 2, 2001, and
applied for the position. He remembered that after Vice-Governor Famor
reviewed his documents, Famor signed his appoiniment paper.
Afterwhich, he forwarded it together with the necessary supporting
papers to the PHRMO.™

Pt
: _Jﬁ“s'

% 18N, 15 June 2016, pp. 24-27; Exhibits 3 and 4.
3 TSN, 15 June 2016, p. 28.
# TSN, 15 .June 2016, p.6.
BTSN, 15 June 2016, pp. 7-8
#* TSN, 15 June 2016, pp. B-9
¥ TSN, 15 June 2016, pp. 13-14.

% TSN, 15 June 2016, pp, 13-16 ( N
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When asked of his proof that he forwarded his appointment paper
to the PHRMO, he referred to the Schedule of Plantilla of Personnel
where hie name appeared. It was signed by the PHRMO Officer, the
Provincial Governor, and the Provincial Budget Officer. ™

He also recalled that during that time, because the Province of
Zamboanga, Sibugay was newly-created, they do not have the
qualification standards. He also claimed that he was "ahead" of the
PHRMO Officer. They did not also have the Selection Board. **

He confirmed having received his salaries as such Board
Secretary |V adding: "According to the Civil Service Law, once your
appointment is signed by the appointing officer, automatically, you will
collect your salary, pending the approval of the Civil Service
Commission."™ He also asserted that he submitted all the necessary
requirements and during the seven (7) months that he was collecting his
salaries. the Provincial Auditor, Provincial Budget Officer, Provincial
Accountant and Treasurer did not issue any notice of disallowance **

When asked whether he knew that his appointment did not reach
the CSC, he replied that he was not informed, further arguing that it was
the duty of the PHRMO to submit it. He also claimed that after he
submitted the necessary requirements, he became busy, hence, he had
no time to follow-up his appointment. It was only after seven (7) months
when there was already a complaint at the Office of the Ombudsman
when he learned that his appointment was being questioned. He
lamented that the PHRMOQ failed to inform him what was lacking and
what were necessary for his a[::|::ut:+in’m’!mi*nt.'ﬂ

On cross-examination, he repeated that he applied on July 1 or 2,
2001 that he was “ahead’ of PHRMO Yukoya. He also said that he was
already working with Zamboanga, Sibugay even when he was still a
personnel of the Municipality of Titay. However, when asked how come
his request for authority to transfer’™ was dated 1 October 1, 2001, he
then stated that he “probably” transferred on October 1 and not July 1,
2001 also, “maybe’, he was not "ahead’ of PHRMO Officer Yukoya. *

Chiong likewise related that his first government service was with
the Office of Municipal Planning Development Office, Municipality Pjﬂ“"’

L___.-:'_".-":"'##HE e

¥ T8N, 15 June 2016, p. 16,
“8 TSN, 15 June 2015, p, 18.
TSN, 15 June 2016, p. 17
TSN, 15 June 2018, p. 19,
1 TSN, 15 June 2016, p. 20.

2 Exhibit B-2
TSN, 15 June 2018, pp. 22-2 : \N\
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Cabasalan, way back in 1877 Having been designated there as
Personnel Officer, he had training in appointment preparation conducted
by the CSC, Zamboanga City. Hence, he knows how to prepare
appointments and disbursement vouchers."

At the conclusion of presentation of defense evidence, the defense
offerad the following documentary exhibits:

DESCRIPTION

i Decision dated August 23, 2012 of the First Division of the
: Sandiganbayan in Criminal Case MNo. SB-06-CEM-0023
| entitlied “People of the Philippines versus Eugenio Famor, |
cetal”, :

- “... Chiong can thus be considered as a de facto officer :
' because he had colourable title or appointment as Board !
. Secretary IV, although such appointment was void, as he
: was not eligible. To constilute a de facto officer, thera must
i be an office having a de facto existence, or at least one
i recognized by law and the claimant must be m actual
. possession of the office under color of title or authority.  In
| cases where there is no de jure officer, a de facto officer who |
‘iz in good faith, has possession of the office, and has
i discharged the duties pertaining thereto, is legally entitied to
: the emolument of the office, and may, in an appropnate ;
* action, recover the salary or compensation attached to the
office. This doctrine is undoubtedly supported on equitable :
' grounds, since it seems unjust that the public should benefit |
. by the services of an officer de facto and then be freed from :
: all liability to pay any of such services, |f Chiong being a de :
' facto officer, can be legally entitled to emoluments, then |
' no_injury was suffered by the province of Zamboanga |
' Sibugay. In this case, Gov, Hofer — the private complainant, ;
. swore before the provincial prosecuter that Chiong actually
| rendered services as Board Secretary and that accused |

" : Pages 51-52 of the Decision, which reads:

“It_is the Court's considered view that the lack of .
. PHRMO _certification, per se, could not have made
. Chiong's_appointment a nullity, much less illegal. The
lack of a duly signed PHRMO certification, if later discovered, |
could even be cured retroactively. According to the witness, |
Ester Yukuya — PHREM Officer — had Chiong's appmntmenti
i been sent to the Civil Service Commission, said agensy would |
: have called her attention to # and asked her to affix her

W

W TSN, 15 June 2016, pp.26-17.
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El:h::::-ngs. app:}ml_rneﬂt could have been validly signed t:ﬂ,'-
' Famor.  Also, there is no evidence that there had been a:
. deliberate attempt by the accused to conceal the need o |
: secure the PHRMO cerification, nor there was any attempt m
- forego with one.

"Overall, the Court cannot impute bad faith, much 1E£5

illegal motive, on any party in this case — or even suspect thai
- the PHRMO or its authorized officer had intentionally withheld !
. the required signature because they knew that Chiong was !
| ineligicle. The bottom line is there is no evidence that any of |
: the accused, by means of false pretenses or fraudulent acts -

- or affimmative act, had overtly misrepresented that Chiong was :

: a college graduate. Conversely stated, there is no convincing |

evidence that accused conspired to have Famor intentionally |

- skip or ignore the unsigned PHEMO certification before h&

: signed Chiong's appointment purposely to conceal the latter's
: lack of gqualification...”

[ '
T i S T oW s Bl Siemmsms s s emms e m e e
[

! Personnel Schadule of tha 'I:I'ffIEE ﬂf l:h:-;- Pmmncial Segretary

3 : Letter dated August 15 EEHZH ::lf El-nan:l Member Dllmpm
. Manalac addressed to .E-.tt',-' Maycybel Alfaro-Sahi, Regional .
+ Director ::nf Ihe ':I'u'll Eewu:e Commission. :

g | Letter dated March 25 2009 of PHRM Officer Ester "r'uhu-,ra
| which reads:

"This Iz with reference o your request to provide you H-e:

1 —.-.u-\.ru.rn_--—u

office failed io find any a\rallal:lle records as to when [he F‘EB
- was first convened to screen applicants in your office.”

"This may be due to the fact thatl our office_has been :

- transferred thrice already and thus, some of our records may
- have been inadvertenily misplaced or lost.  Our available !

records are only with the mosi recent PSB screening under |
i Vice Gﬂvernﬂr H:—:- ﬁ.ndre 'IZ': Oleqario,”

The Resolution dated 19 October 2017 admitted all of the
foregoing exhibits of the defense.

Llpﬂr] the prﬂsgcuﬂan's manifestation that it will no longer present
rebuttal evidence, this case was deemed submitted for decision,

-

W
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DISCUSSION AND RULING

The charge: Section 3(e) of Republic Act No. 3018, as amended,
which says:

Section 3. Corupt practices of public officers - in addition to acts or
amissions of public officers already Penalized by existing law, the
following shall constitute corrupt practices of any public officer and are
heraby declared to be unlawful

iH oMK

(@) Causing any undue injury to any parly, including
the Government, or giving any private pary any unwarranted
benefits, advantage or preference in the discharge of his official,
administralive or judicial functions through manifest partiality,
evident bad faith or gross inexcusable negligence. This
provision shall apply to officers and employees of offices or
governmenl corporations charged with the grant of licenses or
permits or other concessions.

The following essential elements must be present:

1. The a&ccused must be a8 public officer discharging
administrative, judicial or official functions;

2. He must have acted with manifest partiality, evident bad faith or
gross inexcusable negligence; and

3 His action caused any undue injury to any party, including the

government, or gave any pnvale parly unwarranted benefils,
advantage or preference in the discharge of his functions.

FIRST ELEMENT

Anent the first element, there 1s no issue that all accused were
public officers at the time of commission of the crime: accused Eugenio
L. Famor was the Vice-Governor of the Province of Zamboanga,
Sibugay while Nicasio Pefia was the Secretary of the Sangguniang
Panlalawigan. Camacho L. Chiong, on the other hand, was appointed
Board Secretary IV and then, Private Secretary of Vice-Governor Famor,

SECOND ELEMENT and THIRD ELEMENT

"The [second] element of Section 3 (e) of RA 3019 may be
committed in three ways, ie., through manifest partiality, evident bad
faith or gross inexcusable negligence. Proof of any of these three In
connection with the prohibited acts mentioned in Section 3(e) of RA

3D1i?uaugh ta convict.""™ Partiality, bad faith and gross negligence
mean: .{-.

3 gison v. People, G.R. Nos. 170339, 170398-403, 9 March 2010
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Partiality is synonymous with bias which excites a disposition 1o
see and report matters as they are wished for rather than as they are.
Bad faith does not simply connote bad judgment or negligenﬂ_e; it
imputes a dishonest purpose or some moral obliquity and Cornscious
doing of a wrong, a breach of sworn duly thraugh some maotive or
intent or ill will: it partakes of the nature of fraud. Gross negligence has
been so defined as negligence characterized by the want of even slight
care, acting or omilling to act in a situation where there is a duty to act,
not inadvertently but wilfully and intentionally with a conscious
indifference to consequences in so far as other persons may be
affected, It is the omission of that care which even inattentive and
thoughtiess men never fail to take on their own property.*®

Meanwhile, as regards the third element, Sison v. People taught
that-

. [Tlhere are two ways by which Section 3(e) of RA 3019 may be
violated—the first, by causing undue injury to any party, including the
government, or the second, by giving any private party any
unwarranted benefit, advantage or preferenca” Although neither mode
constitutes a distinct offense, an accused may be charged under aifher
mode of, both,-The use of the disjunctive "or" connotes that the two
modes need not be present at the same time. In other words, the
presence of one would suffice for conviction.

‘Unwarranted” was defined as:

"lacking adequale or official support; unjustified; unautharized-or
without justification or adequate reason. “Advantage”’ means a more
favorable or improved position or condition; benefit, profit or gain of any
kind; benefit frorm some course of aclion, "Preference” signifies pricrity
or higher evaluation or desirability; choice or estimation above another,

In other words: “In order to be found guilty under the second mode,
it suffices that the accused has given unjustified favor or benefit to
another, in the exercise of his official, administrative or judicial
functions.”

In this case, the facts briefly restated thus establish both elemenis.

It appears that on ¥ November 2000, Republic Act MNo. 8973
entitled "An Act Greating the Province of Zamboanga Sibugay from the
Province of Zamboanga del Sur and for Other Purposes” was passed.
Among its first elective officials was herein accused Famor as Vice-
Governor. In need of personnel to operate, accused Vice-Governor
Famar appointed co-accused Pefia on 2 July 2001 as Secretary of the
Sangguniang Panlalawigan, and, upon the latter's recommendation,
appointed herein accused Chiong as Board Secretary |\, 5G EE}%-*’"

W

*2 |bid,
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permanent status. The latter's appointment paper was dated 1 October
2001.*7

However, according to the prosecution, Chiong was appointed
without passing through the Personnel Selection Board (PSB), the
PHEMO and the CSC: and despite this, Chiong was able to collect his
salaries, PHRMO Officer Yukoya added violation of pertinent accounting
and auditing rules considenng that it was only in June 2002 when
Chiong allegedly actually submitted his clearance from the Municipality
of Titay

On the contrary, accused Chiong, amang others, denied that he
never submitted his appointment paper to the PHEMO and his proof
was that his name was included in the Personnel Schedule which was
co-signed by PHRMO Officer Yukoya. Moreover, he contended that it
was not his duty to forward his paper to the C5C but that of the PHRMO,
Furthermore, in view of his already-signed appointment paper, he could
already collect his salaries.

For Famor's part, he narrated that when Chiong went to his office,
he "readily” accepted him, he being in need of personnel at that time. He
signed Chiong's appointment paper appointing him as Board Secretary
IV, SG 22, on a permanent status; and asked him to submit it to the
PHRMO for wvalidation. For him, his signature meant only an
endorsement. Whether Chiong brought the appointment to the PHEMO,
he did not know. Moreover, at that time, there was no PSB yet He
admitted that he did not also know the minimum gqualifications for the
position.

Under this factual backdrop, the Court concludes that Pefia in
recommending Chiong and Famor in appointing Chiong both acted in
evident bad faith thereby giving unwarranted benefit and advantage to
Chiong. The latter's complicity is likewise manifest as will be discussed
below,

The reckless disregard of long established rules and

regulations on appointment constitutes evident bad faith on the part of
all accused

Both the prosecution and the defense are in agreement that at that
time, the PSB was not yet convened, hence, Chiong did not undergo
screening by the PSB. Even Famaor's own narration discloses that when
Chiong went to his office, he “readily” signed the already-prepared
appointment paper of Chiong. It was dated 1 October 2001. MNotably,
unusually typewritten on the appointment paper of Chiong are the. <"

4 Exhibit B \“kb’ /’ri{ﬁr
W




DECISION

PP v. Famaor, EL AL
SH-OG-CRM-0453
FPoge 18 of 24
P s St

remarks: "RECOMMENDED by: NICASIO M, PENA, AB, LLB, Provincial
Secretary.”®

This is a flagrant violation of the rule on merit system mandated by
ihe 1987 Philippine Constitution and firmly embedded in our statutes:

» Section 2(2), Article IX-B of the 1987
Constitution:

{2) Appointmants in the civil sernvice shall be made
only according to merit and fitness to be determined, as far
as practicable, and, except to positions which are policy-
determining, primarily confidential, or highly technical, by
competitive examination.

« Section 21(1), Chapter 5, Title |-A, Book V
of Executive Order No. 292
{The Administrative Code of 1987):

Section 21. Recruitment and Selection of Emplayees. —

(1) Opportunity for government employment shall be
opan to all qualified citizens and positive efforts shall be
exerted to attract the best gualfied to enter the service
Employees shall be selected on the basis of fithess to
perform the duties and assume the responsibiliies of the
positions.

« Article 165 of Administrative Rule Ne, 270, or
the Rules and Regulations Implementing
the Local Government Code of 1991:

ARTICLE 165. Recruifmeant and Selection. — Opportunity
for employment in an LGU shall be open 1o all quallified
candidates. Lltimost effort shall be exerted to attract the
best qualified to enter the local govemment senvice.
Employees shall be selected on the basis of merit and
fitness.

To this end, Article 166 of Administrative Rule No. 270, or the
Rules and Requlations Implementing the Local Government Code of
1991 provides for the establishment of the Personnel Selection Board
(PSB) to assist the appointing authority in the judicious and objective
selection of personnel for employment and promotion.

CSC Memaorandum Circular Mo, 40, Series of 1998, re: Revised
Omnibus Rules on Appointments and Other Personnel Actions, th:h.ruj,3,;’52'{,1:?r

g

B Exhibit B [Lﬂ./
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that all appointees should be screened and evaluated by the PSB, if
applicable.”® On the other hand, CSC Memorandum Circular No. 3,
Series of 2001, re: Revised Policies on Merit Promotion Plan identifies
the Provincial Vice-Governor as the chairperson of the PSB for
appointments in the Sanggunian; hence, the one, who In this case is
accused Famor, who can convene the PSE.

The position of Board Secretary IV belongs to the second level
caresr service considering that it requires at least a Bachelor's degree, 3
years of relevant experience, 16 hours of relevant training, and a Career
Service Professional Second Level Eligibility.*"Thus. candidates thereto
must be screened by the PSB ™'

Consequently, in dispensing with the reguirement of PSB
screening, Famor and Pena gave unwarranted benefit and advantage to
Chiong to the prejudice of the civil service. Famor displayed partisanship
and personal favouritism when he readily appointed Chiong who brought
with him a prepared appointment paper bearing the unusual remarks:
“RECOMMENDED by: MNICASIO M. PENA, AB, LLB, Provincial
Secretary.”

That other personnel of the province were also appointed without
being screened by the PSB for none was canvened yet is irelevant in
the resolution of the present case and does not affect the criminal
liahility of heresin accused. In Ampil v. The Honorable Office of the

4 saction 1(h), Rule 11l
: Exhibit A and A-1
Abad v. Dela Cruz. G.R. No, 207422, 18 March 2015

The qualifications the appointee must satisfy depend on whether the position
belangs to the career service or the non-career service. Entrance in the career
service is based on "merit and fitness to be determined as far as Eraclicable by
competifive examination, or based on highly technical qualifications[.]" On the other
hand, entrance in the non-career service is based on criteria other than the "usual
tests of meril and fitness[.]"

Positions in the career service are further grouped into three (3) levels. The
first level includes positions requiring less than four (4) years of collegiate studies.,
The second level includes positions with duties requiring at least four (4) years of
college work up to the Division Chief level. The third level includes positions in the
Career Execulive Service.

Candidates for appointment to first and second level positions are generally
screened by the Personne! Selection Board: In local government units, the

Personnel Selection Board is headed by the local chief executive and is composed
of members appointed by the sanggunian concarned, The Personnel Selection
Board of each local government unit "assist|s] the local chief executive in the

judicious an objective selection of perw for employment as well as promotion [.]"

W
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Ombudsman, Et Al,% the Supreme Court rejected defense's reasoning
of the same tenor, thus:

In the instant case, petiticner was grossly neghgeant in all the
purchases that were made under his watch. Peliiocners admission
that the canvass sheets sent out by de Jesus to the suppliers
already contained his signatures because he pre-signed these
forms only proved his utter disregard of the consequences of his
aclions. Petitioner also admitted that he knew the provisions of RA
7160 on parsonal canvass but he did not follow the law because
he was merely following the practice of his predecessors. This
was an admission of a mindless disregard for the law in a
tradition of illegality. This is totally unacceptable, considering
that as municipal mayor, petitioner ought to implement the law
to the letter. As local chief executive, he should have been the
first to follow the law and see to it that it was followed by his
constituency. Sadly, however, he was the first to break it.

Hence, the proper course of action should have been to convene
the PSE in accordance with the civil service selection process.

Famor's judicial admission of lack of knowledge of the minimum
gualfication standard for the position of Board Secretary I\ and his false
notion that his signature meant only an endorsement do not exculpate
him from the present charge. In Co v. Sandiganbayan, it was held that
accused -

- cannot hide behind the cloak of ignorance or lack of familiarity with
the provisions of the law. It is settled in our jurisdiction that ignorance
of the law excuses no one from compliance therewith. Corollarily, a
mistake of law cannot be used fo justify an illegal act because
everyone is presumed to know the law and the consequences of its
viclation **

On the contrary, the attendant circumstances in this case gives
the impression that Famor and Pena purposely chose to ignore the long
established rules and regulations on appointment in the civil service in
light of the fact that Chiong was disqualified to be appeinted Board
Secretary IV, much less, on a permanent status. It appears that Chiong
is an undergraduate while the position requires at |east a Bachelor's
degree.™

Thus, aside fram not following the proper selection process, Famar
violated Article 168 of the Rules and Regulations Implementing the
Local Government Code of 1981 commanding th/a/t’—/!/

"":GH Mo 192685, 31 July 2013,

 Cov. Sandiganbayan, {.;H MNo. 184768, 1'5 August 2018
** Exhibits A, A-1, N-1 See also Exhibit 1, -1 and 1-ux
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(g) Appointments of those who do not meet the appropriate
eligibility and required qualifications shall not be made, except in
cases allowed by civil service law, rules and regulations.

and Subtitle A, Title |, Book V of E.O. No. 292, (Administrative Code of
1887) which provides:

Saction 27 (1) Permanent status. - A permanent appointment shall v ga
be issued to a person who meets all the requirements for ’rhe-:ﬁ :
position to which he is being appointed, including the appropriate
gligibility prescribed, in accordance with the provisions of law, rules

and standards promulgated in pursuance thereof.

Compounding these transgressions is the fact that Chiong did not
submit his appointment paper to the PHRMGO who had the duty to
transmit the same to the CSC for attestation. Given his disqualification,
the CSC is bound to disapprove Chiong's appointment, Thus, it stands
to reason that Chiong purposely concealed his appointment paper from
the PHRMO. He then collected his salaries through disbursement
vouchers signed by Vice-Governor Famor and Pravincial Secretary
Pena. and through payrolls signed by the latter. ™

Chiong claimed that he submitted his appeintment paper to the
PHRMO: on the contrary, the prosecution said that the PHRMO did not
receive Chiong's appointment paper. As between the two versions, the
prosecution's version rings true. Recall that PHEMO Officer Yukoma,
exposing herself to possible liability, admitted making a mistake 1y
signing the Personnel Schedule. She said that before signing the
Personnel Schedule which apparently lists Chiong as Board Secretary
IV *® she was not able to review the same.

Moreover, Chiong could not ascribe ill motive on the part of
prosecution witnesses Lazo and Yukoya to falsely testify against him,
Thus, “[albsent a showing that the prosecution witnesses were actuated
by any improper motive, their testimony is entitled to full faith and
credit."5?

Chiong's act of not submitting his appointment paper to the
PHRMO evinces his complicity in the present charge. His testimony in
open court betrayed his claim of innocence and even displayed his
malice when he said that he was once designated as Personnel Officer
and that he had training in appointment preparation; hence, he a'llegaj}ly

knows how to prepare appointments and disbursement vouchers.” -

"

55 ExhibitaD E. F. G H, H-1. 1, J. J-1, K, K-1, L, L-1
& Exhibit 2

b Tacson v, Sandiganbayan, G.R. No, 123045, 16 November 1988
B2 TEN, 16 Juna 2016, pp. 26-17
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Thus, the evidence adduced may be summed in this wise: Chiong,
an undergraduate, was recommended by Provincial Secretary Pena to
the position of Board Secretary IV which requires among others, a
Rachelor's degree: Vice-Governor Famor then blindly appeinted Chiong
without complying with the civil service rules on recruitment and
selection process, without bothering to know the minimum gualifications
for the position, and upon a prepared appointment paper bearing the
unusual remarks: "RECOMMENDED by: NICASIO M. PENA, AB, LLB,
Provincial Secretary”; Chiong then concealed his appointment paper
from the PHRMO who had the duty to transmit the same to the CSC for
attestation: Chiong then collected salaries through vouchers signed by
Vice-Governor Famor and Provincial Secretary Pena, and also via
payrells signed by the latter,

Consequently, the respective actuations of the three accused
establish a concerted effort to give Chiong unwarranted benefit and
advantage to the damage and prejudice of the government. As to what
evidence is required to support a finding of conspiracy, this Court is
guided by the pronouncement in Alvizo v. Sandiganbayan:®

Direct proof is not essential to show conspiracy. |t need not
he shown that the parfies actually came together and agreed In
express lerms to enter into and pursue a common design, The
existenca of the assenl of minds which is involved in a conspiracy
may be, and from the secrecy of the crime, usually must be,
inferred by the court from proof of facts and circumstances which,
taken together, apparently indicate that they are meraly parts of
some complete whole. If it 15 proved that two or more persons
aimed by their acts towards the accomplishment of the same
unlawful object, each doing a part so that their acts, though
apparently independent, were in fact connecled and cooperalive,
indicating a closeness of personal association and a concurrence of
santiments, then a conspiracy may be inferred though no actual
meeting among them to concert means Is proved. Thus, the proof of
conspiracy, which Is essentially hatched under cover and out of
view of others than those directly concemed, I3 perhaps most
frequently made by evidence of a chain of circumstances only.

Meanwhile, there is merit to the contention of the prosecution that
the Provincial Government of Zamboanga, Sibugay suffered damage in
the amount of One Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Five Hundred Sixty
Three Pesos and 30/100 (P161,563.30) representing the seven (7)
months salaries and allowances of Chiong. While it is noted that Chiong
actually rendered service, his salaries should not have been sourced
from the province's treasury but from the appointing authority who
willfully and illegally appointed him and whose appointment W??T ,‘,x-ﬁ-

W

= G F Mos DB404-98692, 17 July 2003,
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submitted to the CSC, and hence, had become ineffective. Sec. 11, Rule
V' of the Omnibus Civil Service Rules and Regulations states:

Sec.11. An appeintment not submitled to the Commission within
thirty {30) days from the date of issuance which shall be the date
appearing on the face of the appointment, shall be ineffective. The
appointing authority shall be liable for the salaries of the appointee
whose appointment became ineffective. The appointing authority
shall likewise be liable for the payment of the salary of the
appointee if the appointment is disapproved because the appointing
authorily has issued it in violation of existing laws or rules, making
the appointment unlawful. {Underscoring supplied )

In sum, considering that all the elements of Sec. 3 (e} of R.A. No.
3018 were without doubt proved in this case and conspiracy having
been established, a moral certainty is achieved to find the three accused
criminally liable.

THE PENALTY

WHEREFORE, this Court finds accused EUGENIO L. FAMOR,
NICASIO M. PENA, and CAMACHO L. CHIONG guilty beyond
reasonable doubt of having viclated Sec. 3(e), R.A No. 3019, and are
each sentenced to suffer the indeterminate penalty of six (6) years and
one (1) month, as minimum to eight (8) years, as maximum, perpetual
disqualification from public office; and, to indemnify, jointly and severally,
the Government of the Republic of the Philippines in the amount of One
Hundred Sixty-One Thousand Five Hundred Sixty Three Pesos and
30/100 (P161, 563.30).

SO ORDERED.
L-:::-m@ . PAHIMNA
- —AssocleJustie——
WE CONCUR: :

|

RRERA, JR. MICHAEL
Irperson Associate J

L. MUSNGI
tice
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ATTESTATION

| attest that the conclusions in the above Decision were reached in
consultation before the case was assigned to the writer of the opinion of
the Court's Division.

ERA, J[R.
econd Division

.CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 13, Aricle VIl of the Conpstitution and the
Division Chairperson's Aftestation, it 15 hereby certified that the
conclusions in the above Decision were reached in consultation before
the case was assigned to the wrter of the opinion of the Court's

Division. :
AMPA : OTAJ
; Press
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